St Mary Bourne Parish Council

www. stmarybourne-pc.gov.uk

St Mary Bourne Lake Open Meeting
held on Monday 6" October 2025 at 19.00, in the Clubroom, Village Centre

Present: Jeanette Davies (Chair), Patrick Foote, Alexander Martin, Tanya Mew, Dave Peart,
Charlotte Rimmer

Members of the Parish: 8
Meeting start: 19.00

1. Introduction led by the Chair: General welcome to those attending. Audience
informed about meeting being recorded for the purposes of minutes.

2. Noone from the audience wished to raise any issues at this point.

3. No declarations of interest.

4. REVIEW OF 2024/25
Jeanette Davies related the following to the meeting.

4.1 Tree work

After specialist consultation a poplar was removed as it was deceased, and
another was pollard at it had a split limb.

In the next few weeks, it is hoped that work on two further trees will be carried out.

a. Theremoval of a dead cherry near the surgery.

b. There will also be some work on the willow which is causing problems with the
sluice gate.

1. Working Party
a. Firsta bigthankyou for all the volunteers who helped around the lake earlier in
the year. We had a successful morning collecting fallen wood and planting a
variety of plants and seeds. Sadly, given the extremely dry weather the plants/
seeds did not survive. Hopefully we will be more successful next year.
b. We have another working party arranged for this coming Saturday.

2. Cutting Plan

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 1



a. Thisyearthe schedule for cutting the lake was brought forward to prevent the
vegetation getting out of control. This proved successful. There was an option to
have an extra cut later in the season, if necessary, but this looks as though it
won’t be needed.

3. Wildlife

a. lIt's pleasingto see there has been a variety of wildlife around the lake.
Kingfisher. Little egret, Herons, Grey Lag Geese, Canadian Geese, Cormorants,
Little grebes. Large dragon flies, damsel flies, various ducks, moorhens, coots
etc.

b. MOP queried whether there are more Geese on the lake at the moment. It was
pointed out that this is seasonal and that Geese tend to congregate prior to
migrating.

4. Water

a. The waterin the lake has stood up to the drought conditions surprisingly well.
However, in recent weeks there has been scum on the surface. This has been
reported to the Environment agency. It has been given the case number
02433350 and | am waiting to hear from them. The work on the willow will
hopefully help with this issue.

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE.

1. Search for support.
Mature trees and their maintenance together with the upkeep of the surrounds is
Increasingly expensive. To help with this we are looking for support. | did spot that
there is a conservation department at Basingstoke and Deane, and | have
approached them for advice but so far, | have just been referred to the Parks and
maintenance department. The have yet to contact me. There seems to be funds,
and which other groups have accessed so | will pursue this further.

2. Equipment.

a. Inan attemptto reduce costs of maintaining the lake we are looking at buying/
renting some equipment so that we can deal with some of the maintenance
ourselves.

Shredder to dispose of fallen wood rather than paying to have it removed.
Atrolley and other gardening equipment.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 2



3. Wildlife Camera
a. We are also investigating purchasing a wildlife camera. Possibly the pictures
could be shown on Parish Website/ Facebook.

4. Lake Warden.
Another idea which we may consider is appointing a Lake Warden.

5. Fishing Contract
In response to comments made by the Fishing syndicate the dates for renewal
could be changed. Instead of running from April to April it could move to Jan to Jan.
To make the change next year’s contract would run from April to Jan. Then in
following years it would be Jan to Jan.

Alex Martin response to review

a. Aterrible year. It was pointed out that hot weather produces algae and this was
worse at the lower end of the lake where it may have developed into bacterial algae.
AM stated that he had reported this to the EA.

A substantial number of dead fish have been spotted but due to the cloudy water it
is difficult to say what percentage of fish have died. Fish have also been seen by the
fishermen gasping for air. A pair of cormorants were seen taking advantage of this.

It is not known what stock of fish remain in the lake, but it is not many.

AM suggested that measures could be taken in the future to alleviate this e.g adding
chemicals — humic acid or adding bales of straw. He felt this should be investigated.

PF asked if this could be investigated by AM.

CR was asked by DP about this. It was stated that she had not used Humic Acid and
that it may not be a good idea as there is an output into the river and as a result it
would be flowing out all the time. Barley Straw would remain a constant source

even though there would be some outflow.

AM mentioned that some people use wire mesh to build a container for the barley.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 3



CR pointed out that the barley needs to be on contact with the surface of the water.
Previously she has used Christmas tree netting with floats however it would need to
be refreshed regularly

CR queried whether it was a blue free algae issue or dissolved oxygen. One problem
is that it can be short lived and that it might not be present now. It was felt it would
be interesting to seek advice from the right agencies.

AM stated that he had contacted Amir Fogel about a month ago. In his reply he
apologised for not getting back earlier but stated that it is an issue associated with
the hot weather. AM felt that taking water samples now would still be helpful.

AM said that he would contact Amir Fogel again and hoped that he would supply the
necessary equipment to do tests.

JD stated that it has been reported to the EA and a case number has been issued.
AM was rather skeptical as cases he has reported in the past have not been
effectively dealt with.

MOP asked how often and how many fish are put into the lake. AM stated that
roughly 150 are put in once a year plus a few that have been rescued when the river
starts to dry up. He stated that it seems to be the brown trout that suffer more in hot
weather.

MOP confirmed that he had also seen brown fish in distress, and he had not seen
anything like it in his 20 years of fishing.

CR queried what time of day this was.
AM Stated this was both in the morning and end of the day.

CR queried when this had been observed, was it on a particular hot day. AM stated
that it was end of August/ early September when the main heat had gone. The

colder weather has made a difference but still some evidence of fish in distress.

CR queried the effect of water temperature.
AM stated that at 20 degrees itis anissue.

CR asked if it was particularly shallow where this was in evidence.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 4



AM replied that he hoped some fish may have gone to the bottom of the lake but
without further investigation it is difficult to know.

MOP queried the amount of shading on the lake and whether that is critical.
AM stated that shading can reduce water temperature.

MOP asked if there was a possibility of increasing shade.
AM The trees around the lake were discussed and it was concluded that different
people have different opinions.

MOP asked how many fishermen are in the fishing syndicate.

AM replied 15 -16. Some fish quite a lot but some hardly at all.

MOP asked if there is an arrangement whereby the fishermen fish for a designated
number of days in the season.

AM the only restriction being that no more than five people can fish at any one time.
Itis suggested that members who fish quite a lot are asked to put them back.

DP pointed out that if there are 15 people in the syndicate that is 10 each.

AM stated fishermen are discouraged from taking the fish. However, in the past,
under Dave Scrase, there were two stockings. It’s best to stock when the water is
cold and thatis why it has been proposed to change the season.

MOP asked about catch and release this year as some fisheries have stopped it
because the fish are likely to die anyway due to the hot weather.

AM Agreed that this was the case. He stated that temperature is becoming a huge
issue. However, due to the supply coming from ground water, Hampshire isin a
favoured position compared to other parts of the country.

6. Conservation and Ecology

CR Water vole survey was conducted about a month ago. None were seen but there
was evidence of feeding on the north side of the lake. It is therefore important to
manage the vegetation.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 5



JD reported that there has been increased cat activity in that area since the river
level has dropped.

CR There has been an increasing problem with Mink in the area particularly
Whitchurch and in Andover. It was stressed that if anyone sees a mink it should be
reported as they are very bad for water voles.

MOP asked what would happen if mink were reported.

CR stated that they would be trapped and dispatched.

AM suggested ways of detecting mink.

MOP asked if there had been any sightings of otters.

CR Stated that otters have been spotted by the Wildlife Trust. Conversations are
ongoing about how this work might continue. They use a monitoring raft with clay.
This records the footprint of anything passing through. This has to be checked on a
regular basis and if there are any signs then traps need to be set. Itis labour
intensive as it needs to be checked daily unless it has an alarm which sends a
signal. Mink can be attracted by using mink pheromone. It was stressed that
riparians should keep an eye out for them. They are dark brown with a white flash on
chest and are sized between an otter and a big ferret. Sustainable Bourne Valley are
doing work throughout the valley towards this.

CR made reference to meeting with anglers and requested feedback to help with
formulating the management plan. Reference was also made to the new grass
cutting programme and ongoing monitoring. Each year may be different. Itis
important for everyone to feed in what they want to see being done.

7. Fishing Syndicate.
AM invited to speak but declined as he had already given his input.

JD invited audience for any further input.

MOP asked about a couple of trout that are trapped in the Derrydown pool by the bridge.
AM stated that he had caught them in the past.

MOP has not seen the otter this year.

AM said they were nocturnal but tend to come up the Bourne when itis in flood. Mainly
seen in February and March.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 6



MOP. Asked about the problem with the willows. JD pointed out that some work has been
scheduled in the near future. PF Pointed out that permission has been sought as matter of
urgency for this work with the work be complete while the ground is still firm.

MOP. Asked about the willows on the islands and stated that fishing at the
Recreation ground end was not easy

PF pointed out that permission is heeded to pull them out and added thatitis a
colossal expense. The council has responsibility for everything that needs to be
done and it’s very expensive. The parish council has a limited budget.

MOP . Referred to the fact that AM has his own equipment.

PF stated that this was not a conversation for the meeting and it had been made
quite clear that the council could not authorise the work. The council have to use
professional specialists. We do not have an option. Things may have been done
differently in the past, but the world is a different place, and they cannot be done
any more. We sympathise but we have rules.

MOP Asked if this holds true for any tree bits and pieces.

PF. Any trees are our responsibility. We ask if anyone to alert the council if anything
needs attention.

MOP. Referred to affordability and the lack of public access. It was felt that this
limited the amount of support on offer. It was recognized that the Lake comes with
risks however could the solution be broadening its use to the parish.

JD Pointed out that it was given to the village by the local doctor with a
covenant that specifically states that it should not be open to the public. Access
is strictly governed.

PF Stated that it is basically a gravel pit which is very deep and therefore dangerous.
All sorts of people would love to be in there, but we are bound by the rules,

MOP. It's useful to understand that.

JD. Thanks, given to audience and an invitation was given to join the working group
on Saturday.

Lake Meeting Monday 6" October 2025 7



